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Your directors submit their report, together with the financial statements of the consolidated group, consisting of East Energy 
Resources Limited (“EER” or “the Company”) and the entity it controls (“the Group”) at the end of, or during the financial year 
ended 30 June 2016.

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:-

Mr Mark Basso-Brusa (Managing Director and Chairman)
Mr Ranko Matic (Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary)
Mr Rex Littlewood (Non-Executive Director)
Mr Chris Thoroughgood (Alternate Non-Executive Director)

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group for the financial year was mineral exploration. There were no significant changes in the nature 
of the consolidated group’s principal activities during the financial year.

Operating Results

The consolidated loss of the Group after income tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 amounted to $50,521,741 (2015:
$2,349,485).

Dividends Paid or Recommended

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and no amount has been paid or declared by way of a dividend to 
the date of this report.

Review of Operations

BLACKALL COAL PROJECT – REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Blackall Project consists of a major thermal coal deposit held within MDL 464 EPC 1149, EPC 1398 and EPC1399.  It is 
located close to the township of Blackall in the eastern Eromanga Basin in central western Queensland.

Figure 1: Blackall Project Location Map

Directors’ report
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Project Background

Based on exploration drilling conducted between June 2008 and June 2012, SRK Consulting completed an updated Coal 
Resource Estimate for EPC 1149 which was released in September 2012 (announced to the ASX on 17/9/2012).  The SRK 
report included a total JORC Resource estimate of 1,741 Mt, comprising 1,113Mt of Inferred Resources and 628 Mt of Indicated 
Coal Resources within EPC1149. Note 1

Following the acquisition of Idalia Coal Pty Ltd’s assets in May 2013 the company conducted further exploration drilling on 
EPC’s 1398 and 1399 between June 2012 and August 2013.

During the reporting period, East Energy Resources Ltd (EER) maintained its 100% ownership of the Blackall Coal Project in 
Queensland. The main coal resources in the project are held within MDL 464 and EPC’s 1149, 1398 and 1399. 

With the continued downturn in the thermal coal market the company has reduced expenditure on all activities to an absolute 
minimum while continuing to monitor the resources sector for signs of an upturn. Alternative strategies for development of the 
resource will continue to be assessed.

JORC Resource Statements

In July 2014 the Company announced to the ASX a Coal Resource Statement for EPC1399 comprising a JORC (2012) 
compliant Inferred Coal Resource of 1,504 million tonnes Note 2.

In total, the resource statements announced to date for the Blackall Coal Project confirm that the Company holds a combined 
JORC Total Coal Resource Estimate of 3.44 billion tonnes of thermal quality coal at its Blackall Coal Project.

The July 2014 announcement also included an updated Exploration Target in the range of 2.0 to 2.5 billion tonnes within 
EPC1398 and EPC1399. All references to Reported Exploration Targets are in accordance with the guidelines of the JORC 
Code (2012). As such, the potential quantity and grade is conceptual in nature and there has been insufficient exploration to 
estimate a Mineral Resource and it is uncertain if further exploration will result in the estimation of a Mineral Resource.

Disclaimer:  The Company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that would materially affect the resources 
and all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the Resource estimates continue to apply and have not 
materially changed in the meantime.

Mineral Development License (MDL 464)

MDL464 was granted by DNRM on 20 July 2014 for a period of 5 years, with a commencement date of 1 August 2014.  The 
MDL covers some 37,000a over the central portion of the main coal resources within EPC 1149 as shown on Figure 1 above.  

Project Based Permit Administration

In June 2014 DNRM granted Project Status over all tenements within the Blackall Coal Project.

On 26 November 2014 the DNRM approved a “Global Variation” for the Project accepting reduced work programs and 
expenditure commitments for the next three to four years. The company’s request for this variation was in response to the 
current downturn in the thermal coal market.

New Projects 

The Company continues to review strategic options for exploration and development of the Blackall Coal Project and to review 
other resource project opportunities that could enhance its project portfolio and increase the overall value proposition of EER. 

Note 1 See ASX Announcement dated 17 September 2012 - 1.74 Billion Tonne Thermal Coal JORC Resource
Note 2. See ASX announcement dated 10 July 2014 - EER Reports 3.44 Billion Tonne JORC Resource

Directors’ Report - continued
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Exploration

No new exploration was undertaken on the Blackall Project tenements during the year while the company assessed various 
development options for the resources. 

Key Activities for 2016-17 Reporting Period -

• Maintain all tenements in good standing and meet all statutory reporting requirements
• Continue to review strategic options for development of the Blackall Project;
• Continue to appraise the market outlook for thermal coal
• Monitor Galilee Basin coal projects and government approvals 
• Monitor and assess rail and port infrastructure commitments by other proponents as to their impact on the potential 

development of the Blackall Project
• Conduct limited desk top studies into geology, environment, alternative technologies, marketing, transport and

preliminary mine planning

Summary of tenement holdings and movements held by East Energy Resources Ltd

Tenement 
Reference

Location Interest at 
1 July 2015

Acquired/Disposed Interest at 
30 June 2016

EPC 1149 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
EPC 1398 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
EPC 1399 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
EPC 1400 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
EPC 1403 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
EPC 1407 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%
MDL 464 Blackall, QLD 100% N/A 100%

Competent Persons Statement – EPC 1399 Resources
The information in this report relating to estimates of Mineral Resources within EPC1399, is based on information compiled by Mr Peter Tighe who is a member of 
the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. Mr Tighe is employed full time as Exploration Manager with East Energy Resources Limited. Mr Tighe has had over 
30 years’ experience in exploration, mining and resource evaluation and has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit 
under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking, to qualify as Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the “Australasian Code for 
Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves”. Mr Tighe consents to the inclusion in the report of the matters based on the information, in 
the form and context in which it appears.

Competent Persons Statement – EPC 1398 Resources
The information in this announcement relating to the estimates of Mineral Resources within EPC 1398 is based on the 2004 JORC code and information reviewed by 
Mr Bill Knox, who is a Member of The AusIMM.  Mr Knox has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under 
consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the JORC Code. Mr Knox consents to 
the inclusion in this announcement of the matters based on this information in the form and context in which it appears. 

Competent Persons Statement – EPC 1149 Resources
The Coal Resource estimation for the Blackall Project (EPC 1149) presented in this announcement has been carried out in accordance with the principles and 
guidelines of the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (JORC Code 2004) and the Australian Guidelines for 
Estimating and Reporting of Inventory Coal, Coal Resources and Coal Reserves, 2003.The information in the announcement to which this statement is attached, that 
relates to East Energy’s Blackall Coal Resource on EPC 1149 is based on information reviewed by Dr Gerard McCaughan, who is a Member of The AusIMM and is a 
full time employee of SRK. This information was prepared and first disclosed under the JORC Code 2004. It has not been updated since to comply with the JORC 
Code 2012 on the basis that the information has not materially changed since it was last reported. Dr McCaughan has sufficient experience which is relevant to the 
style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 
Edition of the JORC Code. Dr McCaughan consents to the inclusion in the announcement of the matters based on this information in the form and context in which it 
appears.

Competent Persons Statement – Exploration Targets 
The information in this announcement relating to Exploration Targets within EPC 1398 and EPC 1399 is based on information compiled by Mr Peter Tighe who is a 
Member of The AusIMM and a full time employee of East Energy Resources Ltd.  Mr Tighe has sufficient experience which is relevant to the style of mineralisation 
and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person as defined in the 2012 Edition of the 
“Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves”.  Mr Tighe consents to the inclusion in this announcement of the 
matters based on this information in the form and context in which it appears. 

Forward Looking Statements
This Announcement may contain forward looking statements. The words 'anticipate', 'believe', 'expect', 'project', 'forecast', 'estimate', 'likely', 'intend', 'should', 'could', 
'may', 'target', 'plan‘ and other similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Indications of, and guidance on, future earnings and financial 
position and performance are also forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to risk factors associated with the Company’s business, many 
of which are beyond the control of the Company. It is believed that the expectations reflected in these statements are reasonable but they may be affected by a 
variety of variables and changes in underlying assumptions which could cause actual results or trends to differ materially from those expressed or implied in such 
statements. There can be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ materially from these statements. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking 
statements and neither East Energy Resources Limited nor any of its directors, employees, servants, advisers or agents assume any obligation to update such 
information.

The company confirms that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects the information included in the original market announcements and, 
in the case of estimates of Mineral Resources, that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates in the relevant market 
announcement continue to apply and have not materially changed. The company confirms that the form and context in which the Competent Persons’ findings are 
presented have not been materially modified from the original market announcement.
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ADDENDUM TO EXPLORATION OPERATIONS REPORT

East Energy Resources Ltd (EER) provides the following addendum to the 2016 Annual Report in accordance with ASX Listing 
Rules 5.21 and 5.24.

MINERAL RESOURCES AND ORE RESERVES (MROR) STATEMENT 2016

The Company has reviewed the estimated mineral resources at the Blackall Coal Project. The Blackall Project consists of three 
main coal resource areas in three tenements - EPC 1149, EPC 1398 and EPC1399.  It is located close to the township of 
Blackall in the eastern Eromanga Basin in central western Queensland.

The current MROR Statement confirms the Company holds a combined JORC Total Coal Resource Estimate of 3.44 billion 
tonnes of thermal quality coal at its Blackall Coal Project, comprising:

• A JORC (2012) compliant Inferred Resource of 1,504 million tonnes within EPC 1399;
• A JORC (2004) compliant Inferred Resource of 200 million tonnes within EPC 1398; and 
• A JORC (2004) compliant Resource of 1,740.5 million tonnes within EPC 1149, consisting of a 627.5 million tonnes 

Indicated Resource and 1,113 million tonnes Inferred Resource.

Summary of Mineral Resources at the Blackall Coal Project as at 30 June 2016

Table 1 – EPC 1399 JORC (2012) Coal Resources

Tenement JORC (2012) COAL RESOURCES
Inferred (Mt) Indicated (Mt) Measured (Mt)

EPC 1399 1,504 - -

TOTAL 1,504 million tonnes

Table 2 – EPC 1399 Coal Quality

Seam Name Resource 
Category

Insitu Tonnes 
(Mt)

Inherent 
Moisture % 

(adb)
Ash (adb)

Fixed 
Carbon % 

(adb)

Volatile 
Matter % 

(adb)

Total 
Sulphur % 

(db)

Calorific 
Value Kcal/kg 

(adb)

      1 Upper INFERRED 143 16.4 24.0 33.6 25.6 0.40 4156
      1 Lower INFERRED 105 15.4 29.0 32.0 23.6 0.30 3846
      2 Upper INFERRED 123 15.8 30.6 29.8 23.7 0.51 3728
      2 Lower INFERRED 104 16.0 29.3 30.8 24.0 0.52 3805
     3 Upper-1 INFERRED 193 16.1 23.6 35.2 25.0 0.48 4225
     3 Upper-2 INFERRED 169 17.0 19.2 37.7 26.1 0.47 4497
     3 Lower-1 INFERRED 105 15.7 22.5 35.8 25.8 0.71 4347
     3 Lower-2 INFERRED 96 15.1 27.6 33.1 24.1 0.56 3986
     4 Upper-1 INFERRED 84 15.5 23.9 35.2 25.4 0.62 4280
     4 Upper-2 INFERRED 110 17.4 16.9 38.9 26.8 0.65 4678
     4 Lower INFERRED 120 16.7 18.9 38.4 26.0 0.55 4559

5 INFERRED 151 16.3 19.4 38.2 26.1 0.82 4570

Total INFERRED 1,504

Table 3 – EPC 1398 JORC (2004) Coal Resources

Tenement EXISTING JORC (2004) COAL RESOURCES
Inferred (Mt) Indicated (Mt) Measured (Mt)

EPC 1398 200 - -

TOTAL 200 million tonnes

Table 4 – EPC 1398 Coal Quality

Resource 
Category

Insitu 
Tonnes (Mt)

Inherent 
Moisture 
% (adb)

Ash 
(adb)

Fixed 
Carbon % 
(adb)

Volatile 
Matter % 
(adb)

Total 
Sulphur 
% (db)

Calorific 
Value 
Kcal/kg 
(gar)

INFERRED 200 16.8 21.8 34.5 26.9 0.60 3570
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Table 5 – EPC 1149 JORC (2004) Total Coal Resources (SRK Consulting 2012)

Tenement EXISTING JORC (2004) COAL RESOURCES
Inferred (Mt) Indicated (Mt) Measured (Mt)

EPC 1149 1,113 627.5 -
Sub-total 1,113 627.5 -

TOTAL 1,740.5 million tonnes

Table 6 – EPC 1149 Coal Quality (SRK Consulting Sept 2012)

MINERAL RESOURCES COMPARISON TO 2015 REPORTING 

The 2016 review of the Mineral Resource Statement for the Blackall Coal Project has confirmed that there has been no change 
to the Company’s Mineral Resources and Ores Reserves since the last report as at 30 September 2015.

Directors’ Report - continued
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Financial Position

The net assets of the consolidated Group are $1,706,199 (2015: $52,227,940). Full details of the financial position of the Group
can be found in the Financial Report section within this Annual Report. 

The directors believe the consolidated Group is in a strong and stable financial position to pursue its current operations.

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affected or may significantly
affect the operations of the consolidated Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated Group
in future financial years.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

The Group intends to continue to pursue its goals to acquire, explore, and exploit coal deposits and explore prospective coal 
tenements.

Environmental Regulation

The Group is subject to significant environmental regulation in respect of its exploration activities.

The Group aims to ensure the appropriate standard of environmental care is achieved, and in doing so, that it is aware of and is 
in compliance with all environmental legislation. The directors of the Company are not aware of any breach of environmental 
legislation for the year under review.

The directors have considered compliance with the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007 (the NGER Act) which 
introduces a single national reporting framework for the reporting and dissemination of information about the greenhouse gas 
emissions, greenhouse gas projects, and energy use and production of corporations. For the measurement period 1 July 2015
to 30 June 2016 the directors have assessed that there are no current reporting requirements, but may be required to do so in 
the future. The directors will reassess this position as and when the need arises.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Mr Mark Basso-Brusa Managing Director and Chairman
Qualifications: B.E. (Hons)

Mr Basso-Brusa has a Bachelor of Engineering degree completed in 1983 from the University of Western Australia. After 
graduating he was involved in the design and construction phases of various projects such as the Perth International Airport, 
LNG Storage Tanks on the Burrup, Iron Ore Ship Unloader Romania (commissioning), HV Substations Cape Lambert and 
Pannawonica, and CHLOR Alkaline Plant CSBP. In 1992 he formed a construction company with his two brothers which 
continues to prosper.

Mr Basso-Brusa has developed extensive business management skills over the last 23 years. Mr Basso-Brusa’s engineering 
background provides him with the ability to liaise with consultants, thereby ensuring that projects proceed in a logical, cost 
effective and timely manner.

Over the past three years Mr Basso-Brusa has not held any other directorships of ASX Listed companies.

Mr Ranko Matic Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary
Qualifications: B.Bus, CA 

Mr Matic is a Chartered Accountant with over 25 years experience in the areas of financial and executive management, 
accounting, audit, business and corporate advisory. Mr Matic is a director of a chartered accounting firm and a corporate 
advisory company based in Perth, and has specialist expertise and exposure in areas of audit, corporate services, due 
diligence, mergers and acquisitions, and valuations. 

Mr Matic is currently a director of several ASX listed companies including Valmec Ltd (since 6 February 2012), Celsius Coal Ltd 
(since 23 December 2012), Argosy Minerals Limited (since 17 July 2014) and Antilles Oil and Gas NL (since 12 February 2016).

Mr Matic has also acted as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for companies in the private and public sector and
currently holds several CFO and company secretarial roles with publicly listed companies.

Other than disclosed above, over the past three years Mr Matic has not held any other directorships of ASX Listed companies
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Mr Rex Littlewood Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: B.Sc, MAICD.

Mr Littlewood, under his company, Australian Carbon Assets, consults in most aspects of coal mine evaluation, coal technology
and marketing and was formerly vice president of Noble Energy, a subsidiary of Noble Group.  He was responsible for their 
Asian coal and coke platform, and for developing the Australian operations.

Mr Littlewood has more than 30 years experience in the international coal market, where he was involved in the development of 
mines as well as mining and export infrastructure.  At Noble he designed and implemented a fully integrated, computerised coal
management system from mine to customer, capturing all data in a “paperless” process.

Over the past three years Mr Littlewood held a directorship with Blackwood Corporation Limited, before it was de-listed due to 
an acquisition by Cockatoo Coal. 

Mr Christopher Thoroughgood Alternate Non-Executive Director
Qualifications: B.Sc

Mr Thoroughgood joined the Noble Group in 2000 and is currently Executive Director – Hard Commodities for Australia and New 
Zealand.  Mr Thoroughgood has over 20 years’ experience across commodities marketing, business development, project 
management and technical marketing.

Mr Thoroughgood graduated from the University of Newcastle with a Bachelor of Science. Mr Thoroughgood is a Nominee of 
Noble Group Limited and has been an Alternate Director since 5 March 2014.

Over the past three years Mr Thoroughgood has not held any other directorships of ASX Listed companies.

Interests in the shares and options of the Company and related bodies corporate

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of East Energy Resources Limited were:

Ordinary Shares Options over 
Ordinary Shares

Mark Basso-Brusa 163,526,982 0
Ranko Matic 220,000 0
Rex Littlewood 0 0
Chris Thoroughgood 0 0

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

The Remuneration Report is set out under the following main headings:

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B Service agreements
C Details of remuneration
D Share-based compensation

The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 308 (3C) of the Corporations Act
2001. 

The remuneration arrangements detailed in this report relate to the following Directors and key management personnel as 
follows:

Mr Mark Basso-Brusa (Managing Director and Chairman)
Mr Ranko Matic (Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary)
Mr Rex Littlewood (Non-Executive Director)
Mr Chris Thoroughood (Alternate Non-Executive Director)

The following table shows the gross revenue, profits/losses and share price of the Company at the end of the respective 
financial period. 

30 June 2016
$

30 June 2015
$

30 June 2014
$

30 June 2013
$

30 June 2012
$

Revenue from continuing operations 777,685 10,709 10,380 848,861 1,314,490
Net profit/(loss) after tax (50,521,741) (2,349,485) 6,292 (3,086,669) 442,787
Share price 0.4 cents 0.9 cents 1.9 cents 4 cents 14 cents

Directors’ Report - continued
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A. Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

In determining competitive remuneration rates, the Board, acting in its capacity as the remuneration committee, seeks 
independent advice on local and international trends among comparative companies and industry generally. It examines terms 
and conditions for employee incentive schemes benefit plans and share plans. Independent advice should be obtained to 
confirm that executive remuneration is in line with market practice and is reasonable in the context of Australian executive 
reward practices.

The Board recognises that East Energy Resources Limited operates in a global environment. To prosper in this environment we 
must attract, motivate and retain key executive staff.

Market Comparisons

Consistent with attracting and retaining talented executives, the board endorses the use of incentive and bonus payments. The
board will continue to seek external advice to ensure reasonableness in remuneration scale and structure, and to compare the 
Company’s position with the external market. The impact and high cost of replacing senior employees and the competition for 
talented executives requires the committee to reward key employees when they deliver consistently high performance.

Board Remuneration

Shareholders approve the maximum aggregate remuneration for non-executive directors currently $220,000 per annum. The 
Board determines actual payments to directors and reviews their remuneration annually based, on independent external advice 
with regard to market practice, relativities, and the duties and accountabilities of directors. A review of directors’ remuneration is 
conducted annually to benchmark overall remuneration including retirement benefits. 

The employment conditions of the managing director, any executive director and executives are formalised in contracts of 
employment when such an arrangement is considered appropriate. Other than the Managing Director, the exploration manager, 
appointed in June 2008 and the Chief Financial Officer appointed December 2007, are permanent employees of East Energy 
Resources Limited. The managing director is employed under a fixed 3 year contract, which expired in December 2010.  This 
agreement continues until a party terminates it by giving notice as mentioned in the service agreement.

Performance Based Remuneration 

The Company currently has no performance based remuneration component built into director and executive remuneration 
packages.

Group Performance, Shareholder Wealth and Directors and Executives Remuneration

The remuneration policy has been tailored to increase the direct positive relationship between shareholders investment 
objectives and directors and executives’ performance. Currently, directors and executives are encouraged to hold shares in the 
Company to ensure the alignment of personal and shareholder interests. The Company currently does not offer performance 
based remuneration during the exploration phase of operations. This policy may change once the exploration phase is complete 
and the Company is generating revenue. At present, the existing policy is not impacted by the Group’s performance, including 
earnings and changes in shareholder wealth.

B. Service Agreements

Employment Contracts Of Directors and Senior Executives

The employment conditions of the Managing Director, Mr Mark Basso-Brusa, are formalised in an executive service agreement. 
Mr Basso-Brusa’s agreement is a fixed 36 month agreement from date of listing, which commenced in July 2007 and expired in
December 2010. After the Initial Term, the agreement continues until a party terminates it by giving notice.

Any party may terminate the agreement after the Initial Term by providing 3 months notice.  The Company can also terminate 
the agreement summarily, and without notice or compensation, in circumstances of serious misconduct or breach by the 
Executive.

Upon termination, the Executive is subject to a 12 month non-competition covenant, whereby the Executive must not: engage in, 
directly or indirectly, through any person in an enterprise, company or firm; or carry on a substantially similar activity to that of 
the Company's business.  The Executive is also subject to covenants prohibiting the solicitation of Company personnel.

Mr Matic, Mr Littlewood and Mr Thoroughood are not employed on a formal contract.
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C. Details of remuneration 

The remuneration for each director and each executive officer of the Company during the year was as follows:

2016

Key Management 

Person
Short-term Benefits

Post-
employment

Benefits

Other
Long-term
Benefits

Share based
Payment

Cash, salary 
&

Commissions

Cash 
Profit
Share

Non-Cash 
Benefit Other

Super-
annuation Other Equity Options Total

Performance 
Related

Remuneration 
Consisting of 

Options

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ % %

Mark Basso-Brusa 145,250 - - - - - - - 145,250 - -

Ranko Matic (i) - - - 54,000 - - - - 54,000 - -

Rex Littlewood 38,150 - - - - - - - 38,150 - -

Chris Thoroughgood - - - - - - - - - -

183,400 - - 54,000 - - - - 237,400 - -

(i)  Ranko Matic is a director and shareholder of Bentleys Corporate Advisory Pty Ltd (Bentleys). Bentleys was paid $54,000 in relation to directorship, corporate 
secretarial and accounting services performed.

2015

Key Management 

Person
Short-term Benefits

Post-
employment

Benefits

Other
Long-term
Benefits

Share based
Payment

Cash, salary 
&

Commissions

Cash 
Profit
Share

Non-Cash 
Benefit Other

Super-
annuation Other Equity Options Total

Performance 
Related

Remuneration 
Consisting of 

Options

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ % %

Mark Basso-Brusa 145,250 - - - - - - - 145,250 - -

Ranko Matic (i) - - - 54,000 - - - - 54,000 - -

Rex Littlewood 38,150 - - - - - - - 38,150 - -

Chris Thoroughgood - - - - - - - - - -

Peter Tighe 196,886 - - - 18,704 - - - 215,590 - -

380,286 - - 54,000 18,704 - - - 452,990 - -

(i)  Ranko Matic is a director and shareholder of Capital & Corporate Advisors Pty Ltd (CCA). CCA was paid $54,000 in relation to directorship, corporate secretarial 
and accounting services performed.

D. Share-based compensation

Shares Issued on Exercise of Compensation Options

No options granted as compensation in prior periods were exercised, forfeited or lapsed through the year.

Options issued as part of remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2016.

No options were issued in the year ended 30 June 2016.

There is not currently a formal Employee Share Option Plan in place.

Options may be issued to directors and executives as part of their remuneration. The options are not issued based on 
performance criteria, but are issued to the majority of directors and executives of East Energy Resources Limited to increase 
goal congruence between executives, directors and shareholders.

Remuneration Consultants

Remuneration Consultants were not used by East Energy Resources in the current year or prior years.

Voting of Remuneration Report at 2015 Annual General Meeting

The 2015 Remuneration Report was voted for, without any commentary or discussion, at the 2015 Annual General Meeting, on 
a show of hands with proxy votes for of 146,267,277 (99.89%) and 167,910 votes against (0.11%).

END OF AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT.
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Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, two meetings of the directors (including committees of directors) were held, with the majority of 
business undertaken by circular resolution. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Directors’ Meetings

Directors
Number eligible

to attend
Number

Attended
Mark Basso-Brusa 2 2
Ranko Matic 2 2
Rex Littlewood 2 2
Chris Thoroughgood (alternate to Rex Littlewood) 0 0

The full board fulfils the role of remuneration, nomination and audit committees.

Indemnifying Officers or Auditor

In accordance with the constitution, except as may be prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001, every Officer of the Consolidated
Group shall be indemnified out of the property of the Company against any liability incurred by him in his capacity as Officer, 
auditor or agent of the Consolidated group or any related corporation in respect of any act or omission whatsoever and 
howsoever occurring or in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal. The total amount of insurance contract 
premiums paid is $10,861 (2015: $18,950).

Options

At the date of this report, there are no unissued ordinary shares of East Energy Limited under option.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2016 there were no options granted, exercised or lapsed.

Proceedings on Behalf of Group

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Group or intervene in any proceedings to which 
the Group is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Group for all or any part of these proceedings.

The Group was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Non-audit Services

The board of directors, in accordance with advice from the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services 
during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The
directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external auditor’s independence for the 
following reasons:

• all non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the audit committee prior to commencement to ensure they do not 
adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

• the nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence as set 
out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

No fees for non-audit services were paid/payable to the external auditors during the financial year ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
nil).

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor’s independence declaration under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 20 for the year
ended 30 June 2016.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

MARK BASSO-BRUSA
Director

Dated at Perth this 23rd day of September 2016
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As an integral part of its preparations to list on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX”), the Group has considered and set up 
a framework for embracing the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations Third Edition 
(“Recommendations”). The Group has followed each of the Recommendations where the Board has considered the practices 
appropriate, taking into account factors such as size of the Group and the Board, the resources available to the Group and the 
activities of the Group. Where, after due consideration the Group’s corporate governance policies depart from the 
Recommendations, the Board has outlined the nature of, and reason for, the adoption of its own practice.

Further information about the Company’s corporate governance practices is available on the Company’s web site at 
www.eastenergy.com.au.

The Board sets out below its “if not why not” report in relation to those matters of corporate governance where the Group’s 
practices depart from the Recommendations. As the Group’s activities develop in size, nature and scope, further consideration 
will be given by the Board to the implementation of additional corporate governance structures.

PRINCIPLE 1 – LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT

Recommendation East Energy Resources Ltd Current Practice

1.1 A listed entity should disclose:
(a) respective roles and responsibilities of its board 

and management; and
(b) those matters expressly reserved to the board 

and those delegated to management

Adopted

The Directors have adopted a Board Charter which outlines the 
role of the Board. Executive Service Agreements outline 
functions of the executive directors. Non-executive Director 
appointment letters outline the terms and conditions of non-
executive director appointments. As the Company recruits 
additional management, the roles and responsibilities of these 
persons will be considered and documented.

1.2 A listed entity should:
(a) undertake appropriate checks before appointing 

a person, or putting forward to security holders 
a candidate for election as a director: and

(b) provide security holders with all material 
information in its possession relevant to a 
decision on whether or not to elect or re-elect a 
director

Adopted

Material information in relation to a director up for re-election is 
provided in the Notice of Meeting for each AGM including 
background, other material directorships, term and the Board’s 
consideration of them as independent or non independent 
director.

1.3 A listed entity should have a written agreement with 
each director and senior executive setting out the 
terms of their appointment.

Adopted

All directors, including Non-Executives have a written agreement 
with the Company setting out the terms of their appointments.  

1.4 The Company Secretary of a listed entity should be 
accountable directly to the board, through the chair, 
on all matters to do with the proper functioning of the 
Board.

Adopted
The responsibilities of the Company Secretary are contained 
within the Board Structure Document.

1.5 A listed entity should:
(a) Have a diversity Policy which includes 

requirements for Board/Committee to set 
measurable objectives for achieving gender 
diversity and assess them and achieving them 
annually

(b) disclose that policy
(c) disclose at end of reporting period how 

objectives are being achieved via:
(i) respective proportions of men and women 

on the board, in senior executive positions 
and across the whole organisation (including 
how senior exec is defined); or

(ii) if entity is a ‘‘relevant employer” under the 
Workplace Gender Equality Act, the entities 
most recent “Gender Equality

Not Adopted

After discussing the possibility of adopting a diversity policy at 
Board level it was determined that due to the nature and size of 
the current operation this would be of no value to the 
organisation.  Currently there are only three board members and 
two other permanent members of staff.  There are no immediate 
plans to increase the board size or staff in the organisation or to 
replace current employees or directors.  

The Company makes the following disclosures regarding the 
proportion of women employed in the organisation:

- Women on Board: 0%
- Women in Senior Management: 25%
- Women in whole organisation: 25%

Corporate Governance Statement

ANNUAL REPORT 2016EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED  ABN 66 126 371 828 14



Corporate Governance Statement - continued

EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
ABN 66 126 371 828 15 

1.6 A listed entity should:
(a) have and disclose a process for periodically 

evaluating the performance of the Board, its 
committees and individual directors; and

(b) disclose, in relation to each reporting period, 
whether a performance evaluation was 
undertaken in the reporting period in 
accordance with that process.

Not Adopted

The Company has not yet established formal performance 
reivew measures for the Board, its committees and individual 
directors.  This is done on an ad-hoc basis as warranted.

1.7 A listed entity should:
(a) have and disclose a process for periodically 

evaluating the performance of its senior 
executives; and

(b) disclose, in relation to each reporting period, 
whether a performance evaluation was 
undertaken in the reporting period in 
accordance with that process.

Not Applicable.

Other than the Directors, the Company does not currenlty 
employ any senior executives.  The full Board would be 
responsible for the appointment and would reguluarly reivew the 
performance of senior executives having regard to the 
Nomination and Remuneration Charters.

PRINCIPLE 2 – STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

2.1 The board of a listed entity should:
(a) Have a nomination committee which:

(i) has at least three members, a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and

(ii) is chaired by a independent director; 
and disclose:

(i) the charter of the committee;
(ii) the members of the committee; and
(iii) as at the end of each reporting period, the 

number of times the committee met through 
the period and the individual attendances of 
the members at those meetings; or

(b) If it does not have a nomination committee 
disclose that fact and the processes it employs 
to address board succession issue and to 
ensure that the board has the appropriate 
balance of skills, knowledge experience, 
independence and diversity to enable it to 
discharge its duties and responsibilities 
effectively.

Not Adopted

The Company does not have a separate nomination committee 
and the full board will consider the matters and issues arising 
that would usually fall to the nomination committee in 
accordance with the Nomination Committee Charter.  The 
Company has adopted a Nomination Committee Charter setting 
out the board process to raise the issues that would otherwse be 
considered by the Nomination Committee.  The Board consider 
that at this stage, no efficiencies or other benefits would be 
gained by establishing a spearate nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee Charter is on the company website –
refer www.eastenergy.com.au .

2.2 A listed entity should have and disclose a board 
skills matrix setting out the mix of skills and diversity 
that the board currently has or is looking to achieve 
in its membership.

Not Adopted

The Company currently has a mixture of skills on the Board, 
including technical, financial, business, management and 
leadership.  There is no immeadiate plans to develop and 
disclose a Board Skills Matrix.

2.3 A listed entity should disclose:
(a) the names of the directors considered by the 

board to be independent directors
(b) if a director has an interest, position, association 

or relationship as described in Box 2.3 (Factors 
relevant to assessing independence) but the 
board is of the opinion that it doesn’t 
compromise the independence of the director, 
nature of the interest, position, association or 
relationship and an explanation as to why the 
board is of that opinion; and

(c) the length of service of each director.

Adopted.

(a) Ranko Matic – Independent
(b) n/a
(c) Mark Basso-Brusa – appointed 4/7/2007 – 9 years

Ranko Matic - Appointed 13/7/2007 – 9 years
Rex Littlewood – Appointed 20/7/2010 – 6 years
Chris Thoroughgood – appointed 5/3/2014 – 3 years

Corporate Governance Statement - continued
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2.4 A majority of the Board of a listed entity should be 
independent directors.

Not Adopted.

Only 33% of the Board (1 member, Ranko Matic) is considered 
independent as per box 2.3 of the ASX Corporate Governance 
Principles and Recommendations.

Currently there is one independent director and two non-
independent directors. The Board has been structured such that 
its composition and size will enable it to effectively discharge its 
responsibilities and duties. Each Director has the relevant
industry experience and specific expertise relevant to the 
Company’s business and level of operations. The Board 
considers that its structure is, and will continue to be, 
appropriate in the context of the Company’s recent history. The 
Company considers that the non independent directors possess 
the skills and experience suitable for building the Company. 
Furthermore, the Board considers that in the current phase of 
the Company’s operations, the Company’s shareholders are 
better served by directors who have a vested interest in the 
Company. The Board intends to  reconsider its composition as 
the Company’s operations evolve, and may appoint additional 
independent directors as it deems appropriate

2.5 The Chair of a Board of a listed entity should be an 
independent director and, in particular, should not be 
the same person as the CEO of the entity.

Not Adopted.

While the Board recognises the importance of independence in 
decision making, it does not comply with Recommendation 2.2.  
Given the size and the limited resources of the Company there 
would be no value to shareholders or the Company in having an 
independent Chairman at this point in time.  This will be revisited 
should the nature or size of the operations change substantially.  
The Board believes that Mr Basso-Brusa is the most appropriate 
person for the position as Chairman because of his experience 
and knowledge of the Company’s operations and mineral 
projects.

The role of chairperson of the Board and the CEO (Managing 
Director) are exercised by the same person with Mr Basso-Brusa 
being appointed as Chairman by the Board of Directors in 2009.  
Whilst the Company recognises the benefit in these roles being 
undertaken by two separate individuals, the size of the Company 
and its limited resources does not warrant the appointment of an 
independent individual as Chairman or CEO.  This position will 
be revisited by the Board should the nature or the size of the 
operations substantially change.

2.6 A listed entity should have a program for inducting 
new directors and provide appropriate professional 
development opportunities for directors to develop 
and maintain the skills and knowledge needed to 
perform their role as directors effectively.

Adopted.

The induction of new directors is currently completed by the 
Company Secretary.  All Directors have access to professional 
development opportunities to improve on their skills and 
knowledge to assist in their roles as directors. 

PRINCIPLE 3 – PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

3.1 A listed entity should:
(a) Have a code of conduct for its directors, senior 

executives and employees; and
(b) disclose that code of conduct or a summary of 

it.

Adopted.

Copy of Code of Conduct published on the Company’s website 
and available at www.eastenergy.com.au

PRINCIPLE 4 – SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

4.1 The board of a listed entity should:

(a) have an audit committee which:
(i) has at least 3 members, all of whom are 

non-executive directors and a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and

Not Adopted

The role of the audit committee is currently undertaken by the 
full board.  The Company has adopted an Audit Committee 
Charter which is published on the Company’s website 
www.eastenergy.com.au.  The Board follows the Audit 
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(ii) is chaired by an independent director, who 
is not the chair of the board; 

And disclose:
(iii) the charter of the committee
(iv) the relevant qualifications and experience 

of the member of the committee; and
(v) in relation to each reporting period, the 

number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the member at those 
meetings; or

(b) if it does not have an audit committee, disclose 
that fact and the processes it employs that 
independently verify and safeguard the integrity 
of its corporate reporting, including the 
processes for the appointment and removal of 
the external auditor and the rotation of the audit 
engagement partner.

Committee Charter which provides for integrity of corporate 
reporting and the removal of the external auditor and the rotation 
of the audit engagement partner.

4.2 The board of a listed entity should, before it 
approves the entity’s financial statements for a 
financial period, receive from its CEO and CFO a 
declaration that, in their opinion, the financial 
records of the entity have been properly maintained 
and that the financial statements comply with the 
appropriate accounting standards and give a true 
and fair view of the financial position and 
performance of the entity and that the opinion has 
been formed on the basis of a sound system of risk 
management and internal control which is operating 
effectively.

Adopted

4.3 A listed entity that has an AGM should ensure that its 
external auditor attends its AGM and is available to 
answer questions from security holders relevant to 
the audit

Adopted

PRINCIPLE 5 – MAKE TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

5.1 A listed entity should:

(a) have a written policy for complying with its 
continuous disclosure obligations under the 
Listing Rules; and

(b) disclose that policy or a summary of it

Adopted.

The Company has a Continuous Disclosure Policy which is 
published on the Company website. Refer 
www.eastenergy.com.au

PRINCIPLE 6 – RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

6.1 A listed entity should provide information about itself 
and its governance to investors via its website.

Adopted
Refer to the Company’s Corporate Governance page on its 
website – www.eastenergy.com.au

6.2 A listed entity should design and implement an 
investor relations program to facilitate effective two-
way communication with investors.

Adopted
The Company has a Shareholder Communication Policy which is 
published on its website – www.eastenergy.com.au

6.3 A listed entity should disclose the policies and 
processes it has in place to facilitate and encourage 
participation at meetings of security holders.

Adopted
The Company encourages participation at General Meetings 
upon the dispatch of its Notice of Meeting and advises security 
holders that they may submit questions they would like to be 
asked at the meeting to the Board and to the Company’s 
auditors.

6.4 A listed entity should give security holders the option 
to receive communications from, and send 
communications to, the entity and its security 
registry electronically.

Adopted
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PRINCIPLE 7 – RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

7.1 The board of a listed entity should:

(a) have a committee or committees to oversee 
risk, each of which: 

(i) has at least three members, a majority of 
whom are independent directors; and 

(ii) is chaired by an independent director,  
And disclose: 
(iii) the charter of the committee; 
(iv) the members of the committee; and 
(v) as at the end of each reporting period, the 

number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those 
meetings; or

(b) if it does not have a risk committee or 
committees that satisfy (a) above, disclose that 
fact and the processes it employs for 
overseeing the entity’s risk management 
framework.

Not Adopted

The Company does not currently have a Risk Committee.  The 
role of a risk committee is undertaken by the whole board.  The 
Board follows the risk management program as published on the 
Company’s website www.eastenergy.com.au The Board has 
considered the material risks impacting the Company and its 
Shares. Key risks impacting the Company will be reviewed and 
considered by management and the Board on a regular basis

7.2 The board or a committee of the board should:

(a) review the entity’s risk management framework 
at least annually to satisfy itself that it continues 
to be sound; and

(b) disclose, in relation to each reporting period, 
whether such a review has taken place.

Adopted.

The Board reviews risk on a regular basis with following policies 
and procedures forming part of the Company’s Risk 
Management Framework:

• Audit Committee Charter

• Risk Management Program

A review has not taken place in the reporting period.

7.3 A listed entity should disclose:

(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the 
function is structured and what role it performs; 
or

(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that 
fact and the processes it employs for evaluating 
and continually improving the effectiveness of 
its risk management and internal control 
processes.

Not Adopted

The Company does not have a structured formalised internal 
audit function, however historically the Board has reviewed the 
internal control systems and risk management policies on an 
annual basis.  

Internal controls are reviewed on an annual basis.

7.4 A listed entity should disclose whether it has any 
material exposure to economic, environmental and 
social sustainability risks and, if it does, how it 
manages or intends to manage those risks.

Not Adopted.

The Company does not have a sustainability policy.

PRINCIPLE 8 – REMUNERATE FARILY AND RESPONSIBLY
Recommendation East Energy Limited Current Practice

8.1 The board of a listed entity should:

(a) have a remuneration committee which: 
(i) has at least three members, a majority of 

whom are independent directors; and 
(ii) is chaired by an independent director, 
and disclose: 
(iii) the charter of the committee; 
(iv) the members of the committee; and 
(v) as at the end of each reporting period, the 

number of times the committee met 
throughout the period and the individual 
attendances of the members at those
meetings; or

Not Adopted.

The Company does not have a Remuneration Committee.

The role of the remuneration committee is currently undertaken 
by the full board.  The Company has adopted a Remuneration 
Committee Charter which is published on the Company’s 
website www.eastenergy.com.au.  The Board follows the 
Remuneration Committee Charter which provides for dealing 
with board remuneration issues.
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(b) if it does not have a remuneration committee, 
disclose that fact and the processes it employs for 
setting the level and composition of remuneration for 
directors and senior executives and ensuring that 
such remuneration is appropriate and not excessive.

8.2 A listed entity should separately disclose its policies
and practices regarding the remuneration of non-
executive directors and the remuneration of 
executive directors and other senior executives.

Adopted.

This information is contained within the Remuneration Report of 
the Annual Report.  Setting remuneration for executives is set 
out in the Remuneration Committee Charter.

8.3 A listed entity which has an equity-based 
remuneration scheme should:

(a) have a policy on whether participants are 
permitted to enter into transactions (whether 
through the use of derivatives or otherwise) 
which limit the economic risk of participating in 
the scheme; and

(b) disclose that policy or a summary of it.

Not Applicable

Corporate Governance Statement dated: 30 June 2016
Approved by the Board: 23 September 2016
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To The Board of Directors 
 

 
 
Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 
 
 
As lead audit director for the audit of the financial statements of East Energy Resources Limited and Controlled Entities 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no 
contraventions of: 
 
 the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and 
 
 any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
 
CHRIS WATTS CA 
Director 
 
REGENCY AUDIT PTY LTD 
 
 
DATED at PERTH this 23rd day of September 2016 
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Notes
2016

$
2015

$

Revenue from continuing operations 4 99,125 10,709

Other Income – Research & Development Tax Concession 678,560 -

Audit Fees 3 (21,000) (21,000)

Depreciation (2,785) (2,879)

Insurance (8,225) (18,950)

Directors & Employee Benefits (335,380) (603,004)

Impairment of Assets 10 (48,553,959) (45)

Professional Fees for lodgement of R&D Return (148,498) -

Other Expenses (49,144) (106,873)

Interest Expense (2,180,435) (2,000,955)

Profit/(Loss) before income tax (50,521,741) (2,742,997)

Income tax (expense)/benefit 5 - 393,512

Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of the group (50,521,741) (2,349,485)

Other comprehensive income - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to the 
members of the consolidated group (50,521,741) (2,349,485)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) for profit/(loss)
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 6 (14.17) (0.66)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents per share) for profit/(loss) 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 6 (14.17) (0.66)

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial accounts

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive IncomeConsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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Issued Capital
Accumulated 

Losses Total Equity
$ $ $

Balance as at 1 July 2014 59,912,357 (5,334,932) 54,577,425

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (2,349,485) (2,349,485)
Contribution of Equity net of transaction costs - - -

Balance at 30 June 2015 59,912,357 (7,684,417) 52,227,940

Balance as at 1 July 2015 59,912,357 (7,684,417) 52,227,940

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (50,521,741) (50,521,741)
Contribution of Equity net of transaction costs - - -

Balance at 30 June 2016 59,912,357 (58,206,158) 1,706,199

.

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial accounts
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Notes
2016

$
2015

$

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 7 793,011 517,298

Trade and other receivables 8 7,713 10,272

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 800,724 527,570

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 9 12,284 29,788

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure 10 24,206,391 72,844,963

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 24,218,675 72,874,751

TOTAL ASSETS 25,019,399 73,402,321

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 11 44,278 35,117

Provisions 12 1,460 29,908

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 45,738 65,025

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions 12 6,455 330,463

Borrowings 13 23,261,007 20,778,893

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,267,462 21,109,356

TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,313,200 21,174,381

NET ASSETS 1,706,199 52,227,940

EQUITY

Issued capital 14 59,912,357 59,912,357

Accumulated losses (58,206,158) (7,684,417)

TOTAL EQUITY 1,706,199 52,227,940

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial accounts
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Issued Capital
Accumulated 

Losses Total Equity
$ $ $

Balance as at 1 July 2014 59,912,357 (5,334,932) 54,577,425

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (2,349,485) (2,349,485)
Contribution of Equity net of transaction costs - - -

Balance at 30 June 2015 59,912,357 (7,684,417) 52,227,940

Balance as at 1 July 2015 59,912,357 (7,684,417) 52,227,940

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - (50,521,741) (50,521,741)
Contribution of Equity net of transaction costs - - -

Balance at 30 June 2016 59,912,357 (58,206,158) 1,706,199

.

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial accounts

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED  ABN 66 126 371 82823 ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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Notes
2016

$
2015

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest and Income received 37,994 10,709
Interest Paid (198,321) (181,908)
R&D relief received 678,560 -
Payments to suppliers & other expenses (208,432) (726,060)
Payments for exploration, evaluation and development (598,718) (429,555)

Net Cash Outflows from Operating Activities 18(b) (288,917) (1,326,814)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from sale of Motor Vehicles 64,630 -

Net Cash Outflows from Investing Activities 64,630 -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from borrowings 500,000 1,500,000

Net Cash Inflows from Financing Activities 500,000 1,500,000

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 275,713 173,186
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 517,298 344,112

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 18(a) 793,011 517,298

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2016

EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
ABN 66 126 371 828 25 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This consolidated financial report includes the financial statements and notes of East Energy Resources Limited and its 

controlled entities (the “consolidated group” or “group”). These principal accounting policies have been consistently applied to 

all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

It is recommended that this financial report be read in conjunction with any public announcements made by East Energy 

Resources Limited during the period in accordance with continuous disclosure requirements arising under the Corporations Act 

2001.

a. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements is a general purpose financial statement that has been prepared in accordance with 

Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board 

and the Corporations Act 2001.

The financial statements of East Energy Resources Limited also comply with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Boards (ISAB). East Energy Resources 

Limited is a for-profit entity for the purposes of preparing the financial statements.

The financial report was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 23 September 2016.

b. Comparatives

When required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 

presentation for the current financial year.

c. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of the parent, East Energy 

Resources Ltd and all of the subsidiaries (including any structured entities). Subsidiaries are entities the parent 

controls. The parent controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement 

with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 19 to the financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-group balances and transactions between entities in the 

consolidated group have been eliminated on consolidation.  Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 

where necessary to ensure consistency with those adopted by the parent entity.

d. Asset Acquisition

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, 

the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group.  The consideration transferred also include the fair

value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-

existing equity interest in the subsidiary.  Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.  Identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities and continent liabilities assumed in an asset acquisition are, with limited exceptions, measure 

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.  On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any

non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the 

acquiree’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the 

fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as deferred exploration expenditure.  If those amounts 

are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired, and the measurement of all 

amounts has been reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to 

their present value as at the date of exchange.  The discount rate used is the group’s incremental borrowing rate, 

being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms 

and conditions.

e. Income tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any non-assessable or 

disallowed items. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or are substantially enacted by the 

Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be 

recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no 

effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 

liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income except 

where it relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly 

against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available 

against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The amount of benefits brought to account or which 

may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation 

legislation and the anticipation that the economic group will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the 

benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

Tax consolidation

East Energy Resources Ltd and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated 

group under the tax consolidation legislation. Each entity in the Group recognises its own current and deferred tax 

liabilities, except for any deferred tax liabilities resulting from unused tax losses and tax credits, which are 

immediately assumed by the parent entity. The group notified the Australian Tax Office that it had formed an income 

tax consolidated group to apply from 10 May 2013. The tax consolidated group has entered a tax sharing agreement 

whereby each company in the group contributes to the income tax payable in proportion to their contribution to the 

net profit before tax of the tax consolidated group.
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

f. Going Concern 

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 

business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The Group produced a net loss after tax for the year of $50,521,741 with a non-cash impairment expense of 
$48,553,959 and net cash inflow of $275,712. As at 30 June 2016, the Company had a working capital surplus of 
$754,986. 

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is principally dependent upon the ability of the Company to 
secure funds by raising capital and managing cashflow in line with available funds. During May 2013, East Energy 
Resources Limited entered into a loan facility agreement with the Noble Group, whereby the Noble Group will provide 
up to $7.5 million in funding for working capital and exploration expenses for a period of up to 5 years, with a 
staggered drawdown.  Since entering into the agreement, East Energy has drawn a total of $5.65m.  East Energy 
therefore has access to the remaining amount of $1.85m over the next 2 years to cover operational and exploration 
expenses.  The Company has made a conscious effort to only draw on this facility, as needed, in order to minimise 
the interest expense applicable to the facility.

g. Exploration, Evaluation and Development Expenditure

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of each identifiable area of 

interest.  These costs are only carried forward where the right of tenure of the area of interest is current and they are 

expected to be recouped through successful development on the area or where activities in the area have not yet 

reached a stage which permits reasonable assessment of the existence of economically recoverable reserves. The 

ultimate recoupment of capitalised exploration, evaluation and development expenditure is dependant upon the final 

approval of exploration permits. 

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off in full against profit in the year in which the 

decision to abandon the area is made.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of interest are amortised over the life of 

the area according to the rate of depletion of the economically recoverable reserves. A regular review is undertaken 

of each area of interest to determine the appropriateness of continuing to carry forward costs in relation to that area 

of interest.

h. Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not 

the legal ownership that is transferred to entities in the consolidated group, are classified as finance leases. 

Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value 

of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual 

values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for 

the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease 

term.   Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 

charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the 

life of the lease term. 
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

i. Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related 

contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out 

below.

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 

an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Financial liabilities 

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments 

and amortisation.

Fair value 

Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 

determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar 

instruments and option pricing models. 

Impairment 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been 

impaired. In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is 

considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of

Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

j. Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 

whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable 

amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the 

asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which 

it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

l. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of 12 months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 

short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

m. Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial 

assets.

n. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a 

substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such 

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred 

is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (“ATO”).  In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of 

the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.  Receivables and payables in the statement 

of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the 

statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash flows arising 

from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating 

cash flows.

p. Share-based Payment Transactions

The fair value of options granted by East Energy Resources Limited is recognised as an expense with a 

corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during 

which the option holder becomes unconditionally entitled to the options. The fair value at grant date is independently 

determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the 

option, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-tradable nature of the option, the share 

price at grant date and the expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free 

rate for the term of the option.

q. Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation is calculated on both a prime cost and a reducing balance basis to write off the net cost of each item of 

plant and equipment over its expected useful life, being 3 to 20 years. The current depreciation rates are as follows:

Motor Vehicles 25%

Office Equipment 10% – 25%

Computer Equipment 20% – 33.33%

Plant and Equipment 13.33% - 25%
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

r. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 

Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future 

payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.  The amounts are unsecured and usually paid 

within 30 days of recognition.

s. Trade and Other Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for 

doubtful debts.  Current receivables for GST are due for settlement within 30 days and other current receivables 

within 12 months.

t. Issued Capital

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Group. Any transaction 

costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceeds 

received.

u. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, has been identified as the Board of Directors.

v. Earnings Per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, 

excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued 

during the year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 

into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 

ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no 

consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

w. Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

In preparing this Financial Report the Group has been required to make certain estimates and assumptions 

concerning future occurrences. There is an inherent risk that the resulting accounting estimates will not equate 

exactly with actual events and results.

x. Significant Accounting Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has the following judgements, apart from 

those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements:
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NOTE 1.    SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Capitalisation of Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

The Group has capitalised significant exploration and evaluation expenditure on the basis either that this is 

expected to be recouped through future successful development (or alternatively sale) of the areas of interest 

concerned or on the basis that it is not yet possible to assess whether it will be recouped.

Deferred Tax Assets

The Group expects to have carried forward tax losses which have not been recognised as deferred tax assets 

as it is not considered sufficiently probable that these losses will be recouped by means of future profits 

taxable in the relevant jurisdictions.

y. Significant Accounting Estimates And Assumptions

The carrying amount of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of 

future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Impairment of Capitalised Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

The future recoverability of capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is dependent on a number of 

factors, including whether the Group decides to exploit the related lease itself or, if not, whether it successfully

recovers the related exploration and evaluation asset through sale.

Factors that could impact the future recoverability include the level of reserves and resources, future 

technological changes, costs of drilling and production, production rates, future legal changes (including 

changes to environmental restoration obligations) and changes to commodity prices.

During the year, the Company reviewed the carrying value of its exploration assets in light of the prolonged 
downturn in coal markets. Based on internal assessments, the Company has therefore recognised an 
impairment of as disclosed in Note 10.

NOTE 2. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

a. Names and positions held of group key management personnel in office at any time during the financial year 

are:

Mark Basso-Brusa Managing Director and Chairman

Rex Littlewood Non-Executive Director

Ranko Matic Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary

Chris Thoroughgood Alternate Non-Executive Director

Key management personnel remuneration has been included in the Remuneration Report section of the Directors 

Report.
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NOTE 2. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION - continued

b. Key management personnel compensation

2016 2015

$ $

Short-term employee benefits 237,400 434,286
Post-employment benefits - 18,704
Long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payments - -

237,400 452,990

c. Number of Options Held by Key Management Personnel

There are no options held by Key Management Personnel over the last two financial years.

d. Number of Shares Held by Key Management Personnel

Key Management 
Person

Balance
1.7.2015

Received as
Compensation

Options
Exercised

Net Change
Other

Balance
30.6.2016

Balance 
Nominally Held

Mark Basso-Brusa 163,526,982 - - - 163,526,982 163,526,982

Rex Littlewood - - - - - -

Ranko Matic 220,000 - - - 220,000 220,000

Chris Thoroughgood - - - - - -

163,746,982 - - - 163,746,982 163,746,982

Key Management 
Person

Balance
1.7.2014

Received as
Compensation

Options
Exercised

Net Change
Other

Balance
30.6.2015

Balance 
Nominally Held

Mark Basso-Brusa 163,526,982 - - - 163,526,982 163,526,982

Rex Littlewood - - - - - -

Ranko Matic 220,000 - - - 220,000 220,000

Chris Thoroughgood - - - - - -

Peter Tighe - - - - - -

163,746,982 - - - 163,746,982 163,746,982

e. Other transactions with key management personnel

Ranko Matic is a director and shareholder of Bentleys Corporate Advisory Pty Ltd (Bentleys) which provides directorship, 
corporate secretarial and accounting services performed as disclosed in the Remuneration Report.

Consolidated

2016
$

2015
$

Directorship, Company Secretarial and Accounting Services 54,000 54,000
Outstanding balance at year end - -

NOTE 3. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration of the auditor for:
– Auditing or reviewing the financial report 21,000 21,000

21,000 21,000

NOTE 4. REVENUE

Interest Received 37,994 10,709
Profit on sale of motor vehicles 61,130 -

99,124 10,709
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Consolidated

2016 2015
NOTE 5. INCOME TAX $ $            
(a)    Income tax expense

Current tax - -
Reversal of deferred tax from previous year - -
Deferred tax - (393,512)

- (393,512)
Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:
- Reversal of deferred tax from previous year - -
-        (Increase) in deferred tax assets (4,099,672) (530,166)
-        Increase in deferred tax liabilities 4,099,672 136,654

- (393,512)
(b) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
The prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities before income tax
is reconciled to the income tax expense as follows:
Profit/(Loss) before income tax (50,521,741) (2,742,997)

Prima facie tax on operating profit/(loss) at 30% (15,156,522) (822,899)

Add / (Less)
Tax effect of exploration expenditure (64,573) (97,384)

Tax effect of other (1,587) 1,381

Tax effect of non-assessable income (203,568) -

Tax effect of movement in unrecognised temporary differences 14,463,288 (419,708)

Tax effect of deferred tax asset not brought to account 962,963 945,098

Deferred tax asset not brought to account - (393,512)

Income tax attributable to operating loss - -
The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows: nil% nil% 
Balance of franking account at year end nil nil 
(c)    Deferred tax assets

Tax Losses 19,426,221 18,910,781
Other 117,906 224,592

19,544,126 19,135,373
Set-off deferred tax liabilities (4,099,672) (18,691,243)
Net deferred tax assets 15,444,455 444,130
Less deferred tax assets not recognised (15,444,455) (444,130)

Net Tax assets - -
(d)    Deferred tax liabilities
Exploration expenditure 4,099,672 18,691,243
Other - -

4,099,672 18,691,243
Set-off deferred tax assets (4,099,672) (18,691,243)

Net deferred tax liabilities - -
(e)    Tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 64,754,069 63,035,938

Potential deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses and exploration expenditure carried forward have not been brought to
account at 30 June 2016 because the directors do not believe it is appropriate to regard realisation of the deferred tax assets 
as probable at this point in time. These benefits will only be obtained if:
i. the Group derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the 

deductions for the loss and exploration expenditure to be realised;
ii.   the Group continues to comply with conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and
iii. no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group in realising the benefit from the deductions for the loss and 

exploration expenditure.
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Consolidated

2016 2015

NOTE 6. EARNINGS PER SHARE $ $

(a) Earnings/(loss) used to calculate basic and diluted EPS (50,521,741) (2,349,485)

Number of 
Shares

Number of 
Shares

(b) Number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the year 
used in calculating basic EPS 356,480,930 356,480,930

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year used in calculating diluted EPS 356,480,930 356,480,930

Cents Cents

(c) Earnings/(loss) per share – basic (14.17) (0.66)

Earnings/(loss) per share – diluted (14.17) (0.66)

NOTE 7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at Bank 793,011 517,298

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates

NOTE 8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other Receivables 7,713 10,272

(a) Other receivables

These transactions generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the group. The balance consists 
of receivables relating to refunds expected in relation to good and services tax and operating expense prepayments. 

(b) Ageing of receivables past due not impaired

As at 30 June 2016 there were no receivables past due not impaired.

(c) Ageing of impaired trade receivables 

As at 30 June 2016 there were no receivables impaired.

NOTE 9. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment – at cost 32,708 64,078
Accumulated depreciation (24,653) (44,804)

8,055 19,274

Office equipment – at cost 122,489 122,489
Accumulated depreciation (118,260) (115,475)

4,229 7,014

Motor Vehicle – at cost - 221,082
Accumulated depreciation - (217,582)

- 3,500

Total property, plant and equipment 12,284 29,788
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NOTE 9.  PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT - continued

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the 
current financial year

Plant and 
equipment

Office
equipment

Motor 
Vehicle Total

$ $ $ $

Opening balance at 1 July 2014 24,819 21,624 10,500 56,943

Additions - - - -

Depreciation expense (5,545) (14,610) (7,000) (27,155)

Balance at 30 June 2015 19,274 7,014 3,500 29,788

$ $ $ $

Opening balance at 1 July 2015 19,274 7,014 3,500 29,788

Disposals (8,969) - (3,500) (12,469)

Depreciation expense (2,250) (2,785) - (5,035)

Balance at 30 June 2016 8,055 4,229 - 12,284

NOTE 10. EXPLORATION EXPENDITURE

Consolidated

2016 2015

$ $

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 72,844,963 72,396,948

Deferred exploration expenditure incurred during the period 215,244 448,060

Reversal of Rehabilitation Provision (299,857) -

Impairment of tenement (48,553,959) (45)

Carrying Value at 30 June 24,206,391 72,844,963

During the year, the Company reviewed the carrying value of its exploration assets in light of the prolonged downturn in coal 
markets. Based on internal assessments, the Company has therefore recognised an impairment of $48,553,959 as at 30 June 
2016.

The Group has included $2,250 (2015: $24,276) of depreciation of property, plant and equipment in exploration expenditure for 
the period. 

The value of the Group’s interest in exploration expenditure is dependent upon the:
•continuance of the economic entity rights to tenure of the areas of interest;
•results of future exploration; and
•recoupment of costs through successful development and exploitation of the areas of interest, or alternatively, by their    
sale.

The economic entity exploration properties may be subjected to claim(s) under native title, or contain sacred sites, or sites of 
significance to Aboriginal people.  As a result, exploration properties or areas within the tenements may be subject to 
exploration restrictions, mining restrictions and/or claims for compensation.  At this time, it is not possible to quantify whether 
such claims exist, or the quantum of such claims.
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Consolidated

2016 2015

NOTE 11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES $ $

Trade payables 6,415 4,144

Other payables 37,863 30,973

44,278 35,117

NOTE 12. PROVISIONS

Current

Provision for annual leave 1,460 29,908

1,460 29,908

Non-Current

Provision for long service leave 6,455 30,606

Provision for rehabilitation - 299,857

6,455 330,463

NOTE 13. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings

In May 2013, East Energy Resources entered into a Loan Facility Agreement with Noble Group Ltd.  This facility provides for 
funding of up to $7.5m to cover working capital, plus the repayment of the loan between Idalia Coal and East Energy Resources 
Limited and the loan between the Noble Group Ltd and Idalia Coal Pty Ltd.  

This facility is for a period of up to 5 years, with staggered drawdowns, as required.  At the date of this report East Energy had 
drawn a total of $5,650,000 of the $7,500,000 working capital limit.  

The facility is provided on normal commercial terms, with the applicable interest rate being Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate 
(BBSW) 6 month rate, plus a margin of 7.0%.  The interest on this facility can be capitalised, at the request of East Energy 
Resources Ltd.  

At the end of the 5 year term, East Energy can extend the facility for a further 6 months (“extension period”).   Should East 
Energy not have paid out the funds owing under this facility at this time, Noble Ltd has the option to make application during this 
extension period to convert the funds owing under this facility into ordinary shares.  The facility also becomes payable should a 
change of control event occur in relation to the Borrower.  

2016
$

2015
$

Total Loan Drawings 17,850,773 17,350,773

Capitalised Interest 5,410,234 3,428,120

Total Outstanding 23,261,007 20,778,893
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NOTE 14. ISSUED CAPITAL

Consolidated
2016

Number
2015

Number
2016

$
2015

$
(a) Share capital

Ordinary shares
Fully paid (b) 356,480,930 356,480,930 59,912,357 59,912,357

Total Issued Capital 356,480,930 356,480,930 59,912,357 59,912,357

(b) Movements in Ordinary Shares
Details Number of 

Shares
Number of

Shares
Issue price

$                           $
Shares at the beginning of the reporting period 356,480,930 356,480,930 59,912,357 59,912,357
Less: Transaction costs - - - -
Balance at end of year 356,480,930 356,480,930 59,912,357 59,912,357

(c) Capital Risk Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they 
may continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

Due to the nature of the Group’s activities, being mineral exploration, the Group has ready access to a credit facility from 
the Noble Group Ltd as detailed in note 13.  Further sources of funding are equity raisings. However the Group maintains 
focus on the Group’s current working capital position against the requirements of the Group to meet exploration 
programmes and corporate overheads. The Group’s strategy is to ensure appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet 
anticipated operating requirements, with a view to utilising the Noble Facility carefully and considering appropriate capital 
raisings if required. The working capital position of the Group at 30 June is as follows:

2016
$

2015
$

Cash and cash equivalents 793,011 517,298
Trade and other receivables 7,713 10,272
Trade and other payables (44,278) (35,117)
Working capital surplus 756,446 492,453

NOTE 15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Parent Entity

The parent entity within the Group is East Energy Resources Ltd.

(b) Subsidiaries.

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 19.

(c) Key management personnel

Transactions relating to key management personnel are set out in Note 2.

(d) Transactions with related parties

During the period there have been no other transactions with related parties other than those set out in Note 2.

NOTE 16. COMMITMENTS

Tenement Expenditure Commitments.
The Group is required to maintain current rights of tenure to tenements, which require outlays of expenditure. A tenement will be 
liable to forfeiture if the expenditure conditions, specified within the terms of the grant are not complied with. The Group has a 
100% share of tenements rental and expenditure commitments of:

Consolidated

2016 2015

Payable: $ $

– not later than 12 months 52,500 150,573
– between 12 months and 5 years 62,500 736,000
– greater than 5 years - -

115,000 886,573
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NOTE 17. DIVIDENDS 

The Group has not declared nor paid a dividend for the period.
Consolidated

2016 2015

NOTE 18. CASH FLOW INFORMATION $ $

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash 793,011 517,298

(b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Operating Profit/(Loss) after 
Income Tax

Operating profit/(loss) after income tax (50,521,741) (2,349,485)

- Movement in provisions (352,456) 16,015

- Depreciation and amortisation 5,035 27,155

- Impairment of assets 48,562,928 45

- Interest  Accrued 1,982,114 1,819,046

- Income Tax expense/(reversal) - (393,512)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

- (Increase)/decrease in receivables 2,559 7,143

- (Increase)/decrease in other assets 23,483 (448,060)

- Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 9,161 (5,161)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (288,917) (1,326,814)

NOTE 19. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Ultimate Parent Entity:

East Energy Resources Ltd

Subsidiary Country of Class of shares Ownership interest

2016 2015
Idalia Coal Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100% 100%

NOTE 20.   PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES 2016 2015
(a) Financial Position $ $
Assets 
Current Assets 800,724 523,724
Non-Current Assets 21,838,905 70,332,537
Total Assets 22,639,629 70,856,261

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 45,738 65,024
Non-Current Liabilities 23,267,462 20,809,499
Total Liabilities 23,313,200 20,874,523

Equity
Contributed Equity 59,912,357 59,912,357
Reserves - -
Retained (Losses) (60,585,928) (9,930,619)
Total Equity (673,571) 49,981,738
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NOTE 17. DIVIDENDS 

The Group has not declared nor paid a dividend for the period.
Consolidated

2016 2015

NOTE 18. CASH FLOW INFORMATION $ $

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash 793,011 517,298

(b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Operating Profit/(Loss) after 
Income Tax

Operating profit/(loss) after income tax (50,521,741) (2,349,485)

- Movement in provisions (352,456) 16,015

- Depreciation and amortisation 5,035 27,155

- Impairment of assets 48,562,928 45

- Interest  Accrued 1,982,114 1,819,046

- Income Tax expense/(reversal) - (393,512)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

- (Increase)/decrease in receivables 2,559 7,143

- (Increase)/decrease in other assets 23,483 (448,060)

- Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 9,161 (5,161)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (288,917) (1,326,814)

NOTE 19. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Ultimate Parent Entity:

East Energy Resources Ltd

Subsidiary Country of Class of shares Ownership interest

2016 2015
Idalia Coal Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100% 100%

NOTE 20.   PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES 2016 2015
(a) Financial Position $ $
Assets 
Current Assets 800,724 523,724
Non-Current Assets 21,838,905 70,332,537
Total Assets 22,639,629 70,856,261

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 45,738 65,024
Non-Current Liabilities 23,267,462 20,809,499
Total Liabilities 23,313,200 20,874,523

Equity
Contributed Equity 59,912,357 59,912,357
Reserves - -
Retained (Losses) (60,585,928) (9,930,619)
Total Equity (673,571) 49,981,738
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NOTE 20.   PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES - continued 2016 2015
$ $

(b) Financial Performance
Profit/(Loss) for the year (50,851,169) (2,554,763)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive (Loss) (50,851,169) (2,544,763)

(c) Contingent Liabilities of the Parent Entity
There are no such contingencies.

(d) Commitments of the Parent Entity
Not longer than 1 year 15,000 8,736
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 25,000 561,000
Longer than 5 years - -
Total 40,000 569,736

NOTE 21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly 
affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

NOTE 22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits.  The Group has various other financial 
assets and liabilities such as other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its operations.  

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. 
The Group is not exposed to foreign exchange or price risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors, who evaluate and agree upon risk management and objectives.  

(a) Market Risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rate for each class of financial assets and
financial liabilities comprises:

Floating Interest 
Rate 

Fixed Interest Rate Non Interest 
Bearing Total Weight Effective 

Interest Rate1 Year or Less 1 to 5 Years

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
% 

Financial Assets

Cash 183,011 610,000 - 793,011 5.66% 

Trade and other 
receivables - - - 7,713 7,713

Total Financial Assets 183,011 610,000 - 7,713 800,724 5.66% 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 23,261,007 - - 44,278 23,305,285 10.19% 

Total Financial Liabilities 23,261,007 - - 44,278 23,305,285 10.19% 
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NOTE 20.   PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES - continued 2016 2015
$ $

(b) Financial Performance
Profit/(Loss) for the year (50,851,169) (2,554,763)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total Comprehensive (Loss) (50,851,169) (2,544,763)

(c) Contingent Liabilities of the Parent Entity
There are no such contingencies.

(d) Commitments of the Parent Entity
Not longer than 1 year 15,000 8,736
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 25,000 561,000
Longer than 5 years - -
Total 40,000 569,736

NOTE 21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly 
affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

NOTE 22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits.  The Group has various other financial 
assets and liabilities such as other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its operations.  

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk. 
The Group is not exposed to foreign exchange or price risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors, who evaluate and agree upon risk management and objectives.  

(a) Market Risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rate for each class of financial assets and
financial liabilities comprises:

Floating Interest 
Rate 

Fixed Interest Rate Non Interest 
Bearing Total Weight Effective 

Interest Rate1 Year or Less 1 to 5 Years

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
$ 

2016
% 

Financial Assets

Cash 183,011 610,000 - 793,011 5.66% 

Trade and other 
receivables - - - 7,713 7,713

Total Financial Assets 183,011 610,000 - 7,713 800,724 5.66% 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 23,261,007 - - 44,278 23,305,285 10.19% 

Total Financial Liabilities 23,261,007 - - 44,278 23,305,285 10.19% 
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NOTE 22:    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Floating Interest 
Rate

Fixed Interest Rate Non Interest 
Bearing Total Weight Effective 

Interest Rate1 Year or Less 1 to 5 Years

2015
$

2015
$

2015
$

2015
$

2015
$

2015
%

Financial Assets

Cash 497,298 20,000 - 517,298 1.81%

Trade and other 
receivables - - - 10,272 10,272

Total Financial Assets 497,298 20,000 - 10,272 527,570 1.81%

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other 
payables 20,778,893 - - 35,117 20,814,010 10.61%

Total Financial Liabilities 20,778,893 - - 35,117 20,814,010 10.61%

The Group policy is to monitor the interest rate yield curve out to six months to ensure a balance is maintained between 
the liquidity of cash assets and the interest rate return. Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on 
daily bank deposit rates. The Group does not have any receivables or payables that may be affected by interest rate risk. 

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2016, if interest rates had changed by -/+100 basis points from the weighted average rate for the year with all 
other variables held constant, post-tax loss would have been $220,789 (2015: $194,438) lower/higher as a result of 
lower/higher interest income from cash and cash equivalents and lower/higher interest expense applicable to loans.
Management have deemed a movement of 100 basis points to be an appropriate measure for this sensitivity analysis.

(b) Credit risk

The Group does not have any significant concentrations of credit risk.  Credit risk is managed by the Board and arises from 
cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposure including outstanding receivables.

All cash balances held at banks are held at internationally recognised institutions. The majority of receivables are 
immaterial to the Group.  Given this the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due or impaired can be 
assessed by reference to historical information about default rates.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial assets disclosed within the 
financial report.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about default rates.

Financial assets that are neither past due and not impaired are as follows:-

Consolidated
2016 2015

$ $
Financial assets - counterparties without external credit rating

Financial assets with no defaults in the past 7,713 10,272

Cash and cash equivalents

‘AA-’  S&P rating 793,011 517,298
Bank guarantees - -

800,724 527,570
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NOTE 22:    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances and access to equity funding.  

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate primarily to cash assets. 

The directors monitor the cash-burn rate of the Group on an on-going basis against budget and the maturity profiles of 
financial assets and liabilities to manage its liquidity risk.

As at reporting date the Group had sufficient cash reserves to meet its requirements. The Group has access to a credit
facility from the Noble Group as detailed in Note 13.

The financial liabilities the Group had at reporting date were other payables incurred in the normal course of the business.  
These were non interest bearing and were due within the normal 30-60 days terms of creditor payments. The other 
financial liability is the facility from the Noble Group as detailed in Note 13.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.  The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows.  

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for 
disclosure purposes. All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group at the reporting date are recorded at amounts 
approximating their carrying amount.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The 
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair 
values due to their short-term nature.

The carrying value of borrowings are assumed to be their fair value as the value is periodically confirmed with the borrower 
as to the amount outstanding and interest accruing. The borrowings at reporting date are recorded at amounts 
approximating their carrying amount.

NOTE 23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are used to 
make strategic decisions.  The Group does not have any operating segments with discrete financial information.  The Group
does not have any customers at this stage, and all the Group’s assets and liabilities are located within Australia.  The Board of 
Directors review internal management reports that are consistent with the information provided in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of cash flows.  As a result no reconciliation is
required because the information as presented is what is used by the Board to make strategic decisions.

Less than 
6 months

6-12
months

1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 
years

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

Carrying 
amount 
(assets)/ 
liabilities

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
As at 30 June 2016
Trade and other payables 44,278 - 23,261,007 - - 23,305,285 23,305,285
As at 30 June 2015
Trade and other payables 35,117 - - 20,778,893 - 20,814,010 20,814,010
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NOTE 24. GROUP DETAILS

The registered office and principal place of business of the Group is:

Level 3/216 St Georges Terrace

PERTH WA 6000

NOTE 25. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There are no contingent assets or liabilities.

NOTE 26. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

The group has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of these 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of 
the group during the financial year.

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early 
adopted.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not et mandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016. The group's 
assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations, most relevant to the group, 
are set out below.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all 
previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement'. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset shall 
be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial instrument assets 
are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an irrevocable election on 
initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive 
income ('OCI'). For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the entity's 
own credit risk to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting 
requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the entity. 
New impairment requirements will use an 'expected credit loss' ('ECL') model to recognise an allowance. Impairment will be 
measured under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since 
initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. The standard introduces additional new disclosures. 
The group will adopt this standard from 1 July 2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the group.  

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard provides a 
single standard for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict 
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either written, verbal or 
implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the contract; determine the transaction 
price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk; allocation of the transaction price to the separate 
performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service, or estimation 
approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied. 
Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted to revenue. For goods, the performance 
obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains control of the goods. For services, the performance obligation is 
satisfied when the service has been provided, typically for promises to transfer services to customers. For performance 
obligations satisfied over time, an entity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how much revenue 
should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be presented in an entity's 
statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship 
between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative disclosure is required 
to enable users to understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgements made in applying the guidance to 
those contracts; and any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer. The group will 
adopt this standard from 1 July 2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the group.
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NOTE 26:    NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS - continued

AASB 16 Leases
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The standard replaces AASB 
117 ‘Leases’ and for lessees will eliminate the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Subject to exceptions, 
a ‘right-of-use’ asset will be capitalised in the statement of financial position, measured as the present value of the 
unavoidable future lease payments to be made over the lease term. The exceptions relate to short-term leases of 12 
months or less and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and small office furniture) where an accounting 
policy choice exists whereby either a ‘right-of-use’ asset is recognised or lease payments are expensed to profit or loss as 
incurred. A liability corresponding to the capitalised lease will also be recognised, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease 
incentives received, initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of any future restoration, removal or dismantling costs. 
Straight-line operating lease expense recognition will be replaced with a depreciation charge for the leased asset (included 
in operating costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liability (included in finance costs). In the earlier 
periods of the lease, the expenses associated with the lease under AASB 16 will be higher when compared to lease 
expenses under AASB 117. However EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) results will 
be improved as the operating expense is replaced by interest expense and depreciation in profit or loss under AASB 16. 
For classification within the statement of cash flows, the lease payments will be separated into both a principal (financing 
activities) and interest (either operating or financing activities) component. For lessor accounting, the standard does not 
substantially change how a lessor accounts for leases. The group will adopt this standard from 1 July 2019 but the impact 
of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
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Directors’ Declaration

EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
ABN 66 126 371 828 44 

The Directors of the Group declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

a. complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

b. giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for the year 
ended on that date; and

2. In accordance with Section 295A of the Corporations Act the Chief Executive Officer and  the Chief Financial Officer have 
provided the directors with declarations that:

a. the financial records of the Group for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with 
section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;

b. the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and

c. the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view;

3. in the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.

4. The Group has included in the notes to the financial statement an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

MARK BASSO-BRUSA
Managing Director

DATED at PERTH this 23rd day of September 2016

Directors’ Declaration

ANNUAL REPORT 2016EAST ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED  ABN 66 126 371 828 44



Regency Audit Pty Ltd is independently owned and not in partnership with Regency Partners or any of its operations 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Members of East Energy Resources Limited  
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial report of East Energy Resources Limited  (“the Company”) and Controlled 
Entities (“the Consolidated Entity”), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, 
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in 
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of the Consolidated Entity, 
comprising the Company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year. 
 
Directors Responsibility for the Financial Report  
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standards AASB 101: 
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
financial report is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to des ign 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 



 

 
Independence 
 
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
Auditor’s Opinion 
 
In our opinion: 
 

a. The financial report of East Energy Resources Limited and Controlled Entities is in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, including: 

 
i. giving a true and fair view of the Consolidated Entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its 

performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;  
 

b. The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1. 
 
Report on the Remuneration Report 
 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2016.  The 
directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in 
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
 
Auditor’s Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of East Energy Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, complies 
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
 
 
 
 
REGENCY AUDIT PTY LTD  
 
 
 
 
 
CHRIS WATTS CA 
Director 
 
DATED at PERTH this 23rd day of September 2016 



Shareholder Information 

Additional information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited Listing Rules, and not disclosed elsewhere in this 
report.

Class Of Shares And Voting Rights

The voting rights attached to the Fully Paid Ordinary shares of the Company are:

• at a meeting of members or classes of members each member entitled to vote may vote in person or by proxy or by 
attorney; and

• on a show of hands every person present who is a member has one vote, and on a poll every person present in person 
or by proxy or attorney has one vote for each ordinary share held.

There are no voting rights attached to any Options on issue.

Substantial Shareholders

The names of the substantial shareholders in the Company’s register as at 13 September 2016 are:
Number

1. Majicyl Pty Ltd <Basso Investment A/c> 163,526,982
2. Maylion Pty Ltd 145,913,453

Distribution Of Shareholders (as at 13 September 2016)

SPREAD OF HOLDINGS NUMBER OF HOLDERS UNITS % OF ISSUED CAPITAL

1 – 1,000 34 4,940 0.01%
1,001 – 5,000 122 354,114 0.10%
5,001 – 10,000 112 975,506 0.27%
10,001 – 100,000 314 11,911,892 3.34%
100,001 – over 88 343,234,478 96.28%

670 356,480,930 100.000%

There were 459 shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel at 13 September 2016. The percentage of shares held by 
20 largest shareholders is 92.36%. There is no current on-market buy back taking place. 

Distribution of Listed Option holders

There are currently no listed options.

Unlisted Options 

There are currently no unlisted options.

Shareholder Information
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Shareholder Information - continued

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (as at 13 September 2016)

NAME
NUMBER OF ORDINARY 

SHARES HELD
PERCENTAGE OF 

CAPITAL HELD

Majicyl Pty Ltd <Basso Investment A/C> 163,526,982 45.87%

Maylion Pty Ltd 145,913,453 40.93%

Altius Investment Holdings 2,897,892 0.81%

Benison Holdings Pty Ltd 2,225,994 0.62%

DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd <Client Account> 1,403,000 0.39%

Diverse Industry Financial Services Pty Ltd 1,400,000 0.39%

Mr Steven David Bland 1,385,808 0.39%

S & CJ Pty Ltd <Falcon Gold Super Fund A/C> 1,350,000 0.38%

JP Morgan Nominees Australia 1,060,000 0.30%

Siska Drilling Pty Ltd <Siska Drilling P/L S/F A/C> 1,000,000 0.28%

Michael Johns <Limestone Hill Super A/C> 931,253 0.26%

Mario Ambrosino 815,010 0.23%

Janafield Pty Ltd <Superannuation Fund A/C> 800,000 0.22%

ABN AMRO Clearing Sydney Nominees Pty Ltd <Custodian A/C> 799,321 0.22%

Dr Peter Poon 795,000 0.22%

Ernst Feldmen 700,000 0.20%

Bradley Rowan Pollard 647,276 0.18%

Jomot Pty Ltd 597,324 0.17%

Ms Kim Claudette Parry 568,000 0.16%

Sebastian Corporation Pty Ltd <Rapanaro Super Fund A/C> 497,062 0.14%

Total 329,313,375 92.36%

Shareholder Information - continued
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